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STATEMENT OF HARDSHIP 

Property Owner: 5811 Olentangy River Road LLC 

Applicant:  Jill and Peter Dole 

Property Address: 5811 Olentangy River Road, Columbus, OH 43235 

  

 The Applicant and Property Owner submits this Council Variance request for purposes of 
establishing, constructing, maintaining and operating a new boarding house addition within the 
Property located on approximately four acres of land formerly known as the Antrim family 
farmhouse. Per Council Variance 13-036, a variance was previously granted for this Property 
allowing for a “boarding house.” A “boarding house”, as defined under C.C. 3303.02, means “a 
residential building, other than a hotel, in which meals are served together for lodgings for hire to 
three or more persons.” CV13-036 allowed a variance from C.C. 3332.027, RR Rural Residential 
District, to allow a boarding house to be operated on the property. However, the language in 
CV13-036 permitted the maximum number of guest rooms on the Property to be capped at five 
(5); four (4) guest rooms within the main estate home, and one (1) guest room within the attached 
carriage house. With this request, the existing council variance will be revised to allow the total 
number of guest rooms on the Property to be increased accordingly with the Applicant’s proposed 
plans for the Property. Additionally, Applicant further requests a variance from C.C. 3312.27, 
allowing for a parking space to be located within the parking setback right-of-way line with a zero 
foot parking setback. 

 The Applicant has been operating a boarding house on the Property for several years and 
has been successful in providing short term rentals for business travelers, hospital patients, and 
other travelers looking to stay in town for a few days. Due to the success of the business, the 
Applicant engaged with an architect and engineer to draw up plans for an additional lodging 
structure to supplement their current boarding house business. The addition to the existing 
garage, when constructed, will allow for additional guests to visit and stay at the Property. 
Accordingly, once the new structure is completed, the Property will contain the following number 
of units: a maximum of six (6) of the guestroom accommodations will be provided within the main 
estate home; one (1) guest room provided in the carriage house; and one (1) additional bedroom 
unit to be constructed for an Owner’s suite. An additional three-car parking garage will be added 
to the property to accommodate guests, so that there is no impact to any surrounding property. 

 A hardship exists because the language contained in CV13-036 does not allow for the 
Applicant to proceed with constructing the gate house, as the new gate house would bring the 
total number of guest rooms on the Property above the maximum indicated in the text. Further, a 
hardship also exists because the language contained in C.C. 3312.27 does not permit the 
Applicant to allow a parking space within the parking setback right-of-way. The Applicant has had 
respected engineering and architectural firms look at the site, and given the layout and proposed 
additional construction, there is no other feasible location for the additional parking space besides 
within this setback. 

 A variance is necessary because only multi-family residential zoning districts would permit 
this use but rezoning the Property to a multi-family district to accommodate construction of the 
gate house is not. Comparable uses to the gatehouse, such as a bed and breakfast, are typically 

ORD #0484-2023; CV22-072; Page 3 of 9



integrated into residential neighborhoods in order for patrons to experience the ambiance and 
charm that the neighborhood can offer, as opposed to being located in high density multi-family 
residential districts where they are currently permitted. The proposed use is a low impact use that 
is residential in character and integrates well on this Property in this location. Further, the parking 
setback variance is necessary so as to allow guests on the property to park their cars during their 
stay in a manner that is less intrusive to other guests on the Property. 

 It has long been recognized that zoning is not “one size fits all,” and for that reason, the 
law has developed to allow variances as a tool to allow a larger family of uses under certain 
circumstances. Here, we have circumstances that warrant recognition that the use being 
proposed is appropriate, but the family of uses in the RR district does not allow it, and that is the 
difficulty that warrants the grant of these variances.  

 Further, the Applicant’s proposed use, given the surrounding unique circumstances, 
meets the City standard for grant of a use variance as provided under C.C. 3307.10. This use will 
not adversely affect the surrounding property or surrounding neighborhood. Employment of the 
council variance tool to implement this particular use under these unique circumstances is the 
only appropriate zoning methodology to use. Requesting a rezoning to a multi-family district just 
to implement such a low impact residential use would be inappropriate for this Property, the 
surrounding neighborhood, and the Northwest Community generally. 

 The grant of these requested variances will not impair an adequate supply of light and air 
to adjacent properties, unreasonably increase the congestion of public streets, increase the 
danger of fires, endanger the public safety, or unreasonably diminish or impair the public health, 
safety, comfort, morals, or welfare of the inhabitants of the City of Columbus. 

 The Applicant respectfully requests that the variances be granted. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Jill and Peter Dole 
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